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)

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

Comes now Plaintiff, Leon Isaac Kennedy, individual (hereinafter “KENNEDY™), by
counsel, and for his Complaint for Damages and Injunctive Relief (the “Complaint™), hereby
alleges and states as follows as against defendants GoDaddy, Inc. (hereinafter “GoDaddy™),
Spirit Media (hereinafter “SM™), Arthur Phoenix, an individual (hereinafter “AP”) and J OHN
DOE DEFENDANTS 1-5 (hereinafter referred to as “Does”). (GoDaddy, SM, AP and DOES
may be hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Defendants”):

L. THE PARTIES.

1. Leon Isaac Kennedy (KENNEDY), is a well-known actor and a minister, residing
in Burbank, California, and the owner and proprietor of all interests in and to his name, image,
likeness, and / or voice (the “Kennedy Right of Publicity™) as well as certain other intellectual

property rights, including, but not limited to, certain trademarks, copyrights, and / or rights of
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agsociation as associated with the Kennedy Right of Publicity (hereinaﬁer collectively the
“Kennedy Intellectual Property”)-

2. Defendant GoDaddy 1s an entity located at 14455 North Hayden Road, Suite 226,
Scottsdale, Arizond 85260, i an Internet domain name registration service provider, and is the
current registrar for the domain name myﬂ@g;ﬁﬁ%g@@gmg;gmm (the “Domain’ ).

3. Upon information and belief, Defendant SM is entity located at P.O. Box 43591,
Phoenix, Arizona 85080 and is the registrant and / owner of the Domaif.

4, Upon information and belief, Defendant AP is an individual focated at P.O. BoX
43591, Phoenix, Arizona 85080 and the registrant of the Domain.

5. Upon information and belief, JOHN DOES are individuals and / ot legal entities
whose identities and contact information are protected by Defendants GoDaddy, SMG and / or

SM and AP.

iL JURISDICTION.

L JURIDLA

6. Jurisdiction and venue are propet it this Court pursuant to Ind. Code § 33-28-1-2
and Ind. Tr. Rule 75(A)1), T-R. 75(A)2), T.R. 75(A)(4), and T.R. (A)8)-

1L BACKGROUND.

7. KENNEDY is an American actor, producer, and writer, best known for his
performance as "Too Sweet" in 1979's Penitentiary and its sequels. Asa result of his widely
yecognized carcer, various commercial rights of substantial value have been attached o
KENNEDYS's name, image and likeness (the Kennedy Right of Publicity). The Kennedy Right
of Publicity and the afore-described and related Kennedy Intellectual Property Rights are
proprietary rights and / or interests recognized and protected by the common law as well as

various state and federal statutes.



8. At all times pertinent hereto, the Defendants have registered and subsequently
displayed the Domain without authorization.

9. Moreover. Defendants bave offered the Domain for sale for $5,000 ata domain
auction that associates the Domain v:/ith KENNEDY and the Kennedy Intellectual Property,
including but not limited to the Kennedy Right of Publicity, further demonstrating the inherent
value associated with the Kennedy Intellectual Property, including but not limited to the
Kennedy Right of Publicity, and in an attempt to trade off the value, notoriety and goodwill
associated with the Domain and the Kennedy Right of Publicity, fusther demonstrating the
inherent value associated with the Kennedy Intellectual Property. See Exhibit 1 attached hereto.

10.  This unauthorized commercial use and registration of the Domain constitutes an
unauthorized and illegal commercial use of the Kennedy Right of Publicity and / or the Kennedy
Intellectual Property Rights and / ot otherwise violates KENNEDY’s personal and / or property
rights.

11. By way of Defendants’ unauthorized commercial use of the Kennedy Right of
Publicity and / or the Kennedy Inteliectual Property Rights through the registration and / or
display of the Domain and by, in essence, despite KENNEDY’s demands for return of control of
the Dornain, by holding the Domain hostage. at all times relevant hereto, Defendants have
siphoned the goodwill and reputation associated not only with the Kennedy Right of Publicity
and / or the Kennedy Intellectual Property Rights, but also with KENNEDY’s business interests,
thereby necessitating the present action.

12. As noted hereinabove, Detendants do not now have, nor have they ever had,

KENNEDY’s permission and / or approval to commercially exploit the Kennedy Intellectual
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Property Rights a;n&, likewise, Defendants’ unauthorized commercial use of the Kennedy
Intellectual Property rights 1s a use that KENNEDY did not and would not have ever authorized.
13.  Since the date of registration, each and every one of the Defendants, with
knowledge of KENNEDY’s ownership of the Kennedy Right of Publicity and / or the Kennedy

Intellectual Property, has not now nor ever placed any content.on the Domain and, instead, has
“parked” the domain name “n direct contravention to Federal law, specifically, the United States
Anti Cybersquatting Piracy Act. 15 U.S.C. § 1125(d).

14.  Inan attempt to conceal its identity and avoid liability pursuant to the claims
herein made by KENNEDY as against each and every one of the Defendants, Defendants SM,
AP, and Does registered the Domain via GoDaddy, a web service that allows cybersquatters such
as Defendants SM, AP, and / or Does to keep their personal information private while still
retaining the ability to “park” a domain in the hope that the owner of the rights in and to the
domain name by virtue of United States Tradémark jaw and common law right of publicity will
pay, without cause, the unauthorized registrant for the domain name.

15. It is well settled under the laws of the United States, that any use of another’s
intellectual property by way of utilizing a mark confusingly similar to that of another and / or
registering and owning a domain name that is the same and / or confusingly similar to another, is
prohibited as trademark infringement under the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. §1114, et. seq. and 15
U.S.C. § 1125(d).

16.  Defendants’ unauthorized and illegal commercial use of the Kennedy Right of
Publicity and / or the Kennedy Intellectual Property Rights, has resulted in irreparable harm to
KENNEDY that cannot otherwise be redressed without an injunction ordering the immediate

transfer of the Domain to KENNEDY.
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COUNT I
VIOLATION OF SECTION 1125 (a) OF THE LANHAM ACT

18. KENNEDY repeats and realleges the allegations in Paragraphs 1. through 15.

19. At all times pertinent hereto each and every one of the Defendants have used the
Kennedy Intellectual Property, including but not limited to the Kennedy Right of Publicity, by
registering the Domain, misleading consumers and Internet users to a parked website, owned and
operated by Defendants, thereby causing confusion among the public as to the ownership,
sponsorship and / or endorsement of the Domain by KENNEDY who is and can be the only
rightful owner of the Domain.

20.  Each and every one of the Defendants have registered, displayed, and have
attempted to trade off the value and goodwill associated with the Domain which actions are
likely to cause confusion, to cause mistakes, or to deceive as to the affiliation, connection or
association to the Kennedy Intellectual Property Rights in violation of section 1125 (a) of the
Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a)(1)(A).

21.  KENNEDY has been and will continue to be irreparably harmed as a result of
Defendants’ misconduct as hercin alleged unless and until Defendants are, collectively and / or
individually, preliminarily enjoined from the use of the Kennedy Intellectual Property and
Domain.

COUNT 11
VIOLATION OF SECTION 1125 (d) OF THE LANHAM ACT

22.  KENNEDY repeats and realleges the allegations in Paragraphs 1. through 21.
23.  Defendants have registered, used, and attempted to auction the Domain, in bad

faith and in such a manner as to constitute the use of KENNEDY *s entire name and that is
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identical to the well-known Leon Isaac Kennedy name intending to profit from the name. 15
U.S.C. § T125(d)(1MA)XD).

24. Defendants have reéistered, used, 'and attempted to auction the Domain in such a
manner as to the constitute the use of KENNEDY s entire name and that is identical to the well-
known Leon Isaac Kennedy name in violalion of section 1125 (d) of the Lanham Act, 15US.C. .
§ 1125(d)(1ANEND).

25.  Defendants’ registration, use, attempted auction, and display of the Domain
constitutes dilution of a well-known mark which was famous at the time of DEFENDANTS’
registration of the Domain. 15 U.S.C. § 1125(d)(1)(A)iD{D.

26. Defendants have registered, used, attempted to auction, and displayed the Domain
in bad faith because Defendants have registered the Domain without ever intending to use it
themselves it in good faith and only to eventually retail the Domain at auction as have been
Defendants’ practice and as is the case for having been left blank (yet displayed) for as long as
KENNEDY has been aware for the purpose of making profit from sales of the Domain, in
violation of section 1125 (d) of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(d)}IXBYAVI).

27.  Defendants have registered, used, attempted to auction, and displayed the Domain
in such a manner as is likely to cause confusion with respect to the Kennedy Right of Publicity,
further demonstrating the inherent value associated with the Kennedy Intellectual Property in bad
faith as follows:

a. Defendants have registered the Domain which consists of the legal
name owned by KENNEDY or a name that is otherwise commonly used to
identify KENNEDY, the well-known actor. 15 U.S.C. § 1125(d)(1)(B)(ii) and

b. Defendants have registered the Domain in order to divert
consumers 1o a sile accessible under the Domain that could harm the goodwill

represented by the Kennedy Intellectual Property, including but not limited to the
Kennedy Right of Publicity, further demonstrating the inherent value associated
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with either for commercial gain or with the intent to tarnish or disparage the
Kennedy Intellectual Property, including but not limited to the Kennedy Right of
Publicity, by creating a likelihood of contfusion as to the source, sponsorship,
affiliation, or endorsement of the site. 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a)(1{BYEX V).

28.  Defendants’ violation of the T.anham Act has caused KENNEDY to suffer

damages not yet ascertainable but which continue to accrue and accumulate, in an amount

to be proven at frial.

COUNT 11
UNFAIR COMPETITION

29.  KENNEDY repeats and realleges the allegations in Paragraphs 1. through 28.

30. The‘wrongful acts or representations made by each and every one of the
Defendants as more fully described and hereby incorporated herein constitute unfair competition
because such acts represents to third party consumers of each and every one of Defendants’
goods and / or services are sponsored, approved, associated with, and / or provided by
KENNEDY.

31. The condugt, acts, and representations of each and every one of Defendants have
caused KENNEDY to suffer damages in a sum as yet to be ascertained and which damages
continue to accrue and accumulate.

32. KENNEDY is entitled to recover any and all remedies, including treble damages,
costs, and attorneys’ fees from each and every one of the Defendants as a result of each and

every one of the Defendunt’s unlawful and infringing actions.

COUNT1IV
VIOLATION OF INDIANA RIGHT OF PUBLICITY (1.C. §32-36-1-1)

33. KENNEDY repeats and realleges the allegations in Paragraphs 1. through 32.
34.  KENNEDY is a personality as defined under Indiana law whose name, image and

likeness (the Kennedy Right of Publicity) has value.
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35. KENNEDY has continuously used and protected the Kennedy Right of Publicity
from misuse since the Kennedy Intellectual Property, including but not limited to the Kennedy
Right of Publicity, became well known.

36.  Atall times re'lévan‘t hereto, each and every one of the Defendants have
commercially utilized and therefore exploited the Kennedy Right of Publicity without prior
express (or otherwise) authorization for Defendants’ own personal gain.

37. Defendants’ unauthorized commercial uses of the Kennedy Right of Publicity on
and / or in association with the Domain, as more fully described hereinabove, have been for the
purpose of Defendants’ unlawfully obtaining advertising revenue, sales revenue, notoricty, and
to earn continuous service fee.

38, As a result of each and every one of Defendants’ violation of Indiana’s Right of
Publicity statute (L.C. §32-36-1-1 et seq.) as more fully detailed herein, KENNEDY has suffered
damages not yet ascertainable but which continue to accrue and accumulate, in an amount to be
proven at trial.

3. Under the Indiana Right of Publicity Statute (IC §§32-36-1-10, 1 1), each and
every one of Defendants are liable for any and all damages sustained by KENNEDY; Defendants
are liable in the amount of statutory, actual and punitive damages; and KENNEDY is entitled to
any profits from the unauthorized uses that are attributable to the use and are not taken into
account in computing the actual damages.

40.  Under the Indiana Right of Publicity Statute, KENNEDY, having been irreparably
harmed by Defendants’ actions with regard to Defendants’ unauthorized and infringing

commercial misuse of the Kennedy Right of Publicity, is entitled to injunctive relief for the
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purposcs of protecting the aforementioned rights and preventing further economic harm to
KENNEDY. (IC §32-36-1-12).

COUNT V
CONVERSION (L.C. § 35-43-4-3)

41.  KENNEDY repeats and realleges the allegations in Paragraphs 1. through 40,

42.  KENNEDY is the sole and exclﬁsive owner of the Kennedy Intellectual Property
including but not limited to the Kennedy Right of Publicity.

43.  The Kennedy Intellectual Property Rights, including but pot limited to the
Kennedy Right of Publicity, are property rights, descendable and transferrable, under Indiana
law.

44. By engaging in the conduct as described and by holding the IDomain hostage
without authorization and only for the purpose of each and every one of Defendants” commercial
benefit, despite KENNEDY s demands for the return of the Domain, each and every one of
Defendants has exerted unauthorized contro! over the property of anothe;'. In so doing each and
every one of the Defendants have committed conversion and have proximately caused
KENNEDY to suffer damages in a sum as yet 0 be ascertained but which damages continue to
acerue and accumulate.

45. KENNEDY is entitled to any and all remedies available to KENNEDY under
Indiana law, including treble damages, costs, and attomeys' fees from each and every one of
Defendants under [.C. § 34-24-3-1.

COUNT VI
DECEPTION I.C. § 35-43-5-3(2)(6)

46.  KENNEDY repeats and realleges the allegations in Paragraphs 1. through 45.
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47, By engaging in the cqnducl as herein described and complained of, each and
every one of the Defendants has disseminated to the public advertisements that Defendants know
are false, misleading, or deceptive, with intent to promote the purchase or sale of Defendants’
services, business, and / or products.

48.  On the hasis of Defendants’ unlawful and illegal actions as herein complained of.
each and every one of Defendants have committed deception as defined under Indiana law at 1.C.
§ 35-43-5-3(a)(6).

49.  Defendants’ commission of deception has proximately caused KENNEDY to
suffer damages in a sum as yet o be ascertained but which damages continue to accrue and
accumulate.

50. KENNEDY will continue to be irreparably harmed by Defendants unless
Defendants are, collectively or individually, preliminarily enjoined from their unlawful business
practices which constitute deception under Indiana law.

51. KENNEDY has suffered irreparable harm and, likewise, KENNEDY’s remedy at
law is inadequate to prevent further violation of its rights.

COUNT VII
INDIANA CRIME VICTIMS’ ACT 1.C. § 35-24-3-1

52. KENNEDY repeats and realleges the allegations in Paragraphs 1. through 51.

53.  Under the Indiana Crime Victims™ Act, a person that suffers pecuniary loss as a
result of a violation of Ind. Code § 35-43 ef seq., may bring a civil action as against the person(s)
who caused the loss for treble damages, costs of the action, and reasonable attorneys’ fees.

54.  As stated hereinbefore, each and every one of Defendants have violated 1.C. § 35-

43 through their knowing, intentional, willful, and malicious commission of the following
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offenses: a. “Conversion” as defined in L.C. § 35-43-4-3: and b. “Deception” as defined in Ind.
Code § 35-43-3-3.
55.  KENNEDY is victim of each and every one of Defendants’ knowing, intentional,
willful, and malicious criminal violations and, as a result, has suffered actual pecuniary damages.
56.  Accordingly, KENNEDY is entitled to an award as against each and every one of
the Defendants of those actual démages as well as statutory treble damages, corrective
advertising damages, costs, and reasonable attorneys’ fees.

IV. DEMAND FORJURY.

57. KENNEDY hereby respectfully requests that all issues herein raised by this
Complaint for Damages and for Injunctive Relief be tried by Jury.

V.  PRAYER FOR RELIEF.

WHEREFORE Plaintiff, Leon Isaac Kennedy, individual (hereinafter “KENNEDY™), by
hereby prays for judgment as against defendants GoDaddy, Inc. (hereinafter “GoDaddy”), Spirit
Media (hereinafter “SM™), Arthur Phoenix, an individual (hereinafter “AP”) and JOHN DOE
DEFENDANTS 1-5 (hereinafter referred to as “Does”) (GoDaddy, SM, AP and DOES may be
hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Defendants™) where said judgment may include but
may not be necessarily limited to the following relief:

a. An order directing the immediate and complete transfer, without cost to BAIO, of
the domain name www.leonisaackennedy.com to KENNEDY;

b. An injunction enjoining Defendants, collectively or individually, from future use
of the Kennedy Intellectual Property, including but not limited to the Kennedy Right of Publicity,
as herein defined, in whatever form;

c. An order directing the immediate and complete surrender of any and all
merchandise, designs, plans, marketing materials, advertisements, conceptuals, etc. featuring the
Kennedy Intellectual Property, including but not limited to the Kennedy Right of Publicity, to
KENNEDY,
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.

d. An award of damages, including but not necessarily limited to treble damages,
costs, and attorneys’ fees as set forth in the applicable statutes in an aggregate amount that is, as
yet, undetermined, but which amount continues to accrue; and

All other just and proper relief in the premises.

¢

Respectfully submitted,
SOVICH MINCH LLP

By <] )@4 //’%)

Theodore J. Minch (18798-49)

Attorney for Plaintiff Leon Isaac Kennedy
Sovich Minch LLP

10099 Chesapeake Drive, Suite 100
McCordsville, Indiana 46055
timinch@sovichminch.com

(317) 335-3601 (1)

(317) 335-3602 (f)




Case 1:13-cv-00876-RLY-DML Document 1-1 Filed 05/29/13 Page 13 of 14 PagelD #: 17

422113 Dornain Auction | Buy & Sell Distinctive Domains - Go Daddy

(480) 505-8877 e

Rtk Cramie Accaunt
Fantnmoes Eapatiol

Comrarciate | Deals | Bobrs Bley

Keyword Search

GO Daddy AUCtiOﬁS Domain Name Afte rmarkel

Mane a bid, make an offer, Buy or sell currenily registered domain names

ﬁ > o Enter keywords to begin search a0 Advanced Search
. kil
Papular Searches Search Results to Retum [ Aread Auct ber? Loa
i o Lo N rber? Lo
- Seloct Prodefined Search - x 2 (vl n e | Areadvan fuctons memtber?eg.in
woten Name ) Bid/Offer  Traffic  Valuation  Price Time Left
. . LSO Ofar §2,500 of mare .
o leonisaackennedy.com 0 B - $5000 e 10D 2H
or Buy Now for 55,000
Auction Ends ftem # Price  Status  Sale Type Bds/Offers - Age Views More Details
- ) - QfferiCourer-Offer N by +
05/02/2013 12:23.00 PM (PDT} 0379728 35000 Cpen - iy Now o 11 Category, |8 history, | Ghat

o ksase Kentedy - ex-hushand of Jayne Kennedy, former NFL sportscaster and star of 1amaus action movies such as Body and Soul, Penitertiary |, & and B, Fighting e, and Lone Woit
Meuade starring Chuck Norris co-atarring Lean isagc Kennedy

Ne auclions selecied

Officiat Ture - Page Last Lipdated:
2013/04/22 094823 AMFOTY 2

3o Umddy Suchons seliars s rasponshia i anmang 1al offdred doman rEree sy aet inhingey on fird-party tscemane.

SE Tiabal

Currency: ‘United States Dollar § {Transactional}

Language: English vl Country: United States
Account Manager  Shopping Resourses Support About Go Daddy Mabile Giohal Sites
My Account Daman Search We b ail Teleprone Support & Sales  About Us Go Daddy, on the G o Daddy [English)
My Renewals Web Hosting WHOIS search Produtt Support News Releases iPhone Application Go Daddy (Espafiof
Owder History Product Catalog  ICANN Caonfirmation Giscussion Forums Gareers iPagt Application e Daddy Australia
Cruate Aceount Go Daddy Goar Affiliates tser Broups Go Daddy Cares Android Application Go Daddy Canads
Deals of the Doy Follow & Fan Us Submit Support Ticket Marketing Opportunities  Visit Ge Dagdy Moblie Go Daddy India
hartgat Site Buggestions Customer Testimonials G Daday United Wngdom
Small Business Canter Report Abuse Sacurlty Centar
Site Map JME Sehoiarship

Round Up for Charity Sign Up for Bpecial Offers

Bob's Video Blog Ermail Address G
inside Go Oaddy

Fallow & Fan Us

Use of wis Site 1 subject to exprass terms of use. By using this site, you signify tat you agree to be bound by these Uriyersal Terme
e o olicy
Golatdy. comis the worlfs No. 1 ICANN-aooreciind domein name tegistar Lo COM NET, ORG_INFO, BIZ and 14 domain axtensions. Smerce: HagisrarETA TE.com

of Bervice.

Copyright @ 1999 - 2013 Go Daddy Cperating Carmpany, LLC, Al Rights Reserved. E

https:ffauctions.g odaddy.comvtrpltemtisting .aspx?ci=446618miid=20373729 12



Case 1:13-cv-00876-RLY-DML Document 1-1 Filed 05/29/13 Page 14 of 14 PagelD #: 18

422013 Domain Auction | Buy & Seli Distinctive Domains - Go Daddy

hitps:/auctions.g odaddy.comArpltemlisting .aspx?ci=44661&miid=20373729

22





